



Memorandum

To: Members of the Charter Subcommittee
From: Lisle Baker, Chair
Re: Materials for March 21, 2018 meeting
Date: March 16, 2018

The start time for the Charter Subcommittee meeting has been pushed back to 6:30PM to accommodate members of the Subcommittee.

Attached please find several documents to prepare for the March 21st meeting:

- Agenda
- Redlined version of Articles 1,3,5 and 6
- Side-by-side comparison of Articles 1,3,5 and 6. (Please note that text highlighted in blue indicates new text; red text indicates passages that were deleted entirely.)
- Comments by Councilor Krintzman on Articles 3, 5 and 6
- References to Charter Commission reports that correspond to Articles 1,3,5 and 6

Note that in addition to the helpful materials prepared by Ms. Dean, Councilor Krintzman has made comments on three of the sections, so those are attached as further background, with thanks. In the interest of using our 90 minutes efficiently, my suggestion is that Subcommittee members review the proposed changes and highlight those you would like discussed, or deferred, e.g., term limits for the Mayor, as we plan to take up term limits in general in the fall.

Please also review the relevant Charter Commission minutes for further background, which can be found in the book you were provided. You will find a list of the appropriate meetings dates in this packet, and they may also be found online at:

http://www.newtonma.gov/gov/chartercommission/agendas_n_minutes/default.asp

As this is our first substantive meeting, please bear with some sorting out how best to proceed. I do want to acknowledge the help of Karyn Dean in getting these materials in order.

- Councilor Baker



Charter Subcommittee Agenda

City of Newton In City Council

Wednesday, March 21, 2018

6:30M – New Start Time
Room 211

Scheduled for Discussion:

Discussion and Review:

- Article 1: Incorporation; Form of Government; Powers of the City
- Article 3: Executive Branch (term limits excluded)
- Article 5: Financial Procedures
- Article 6: Administrative Departments

Chair's Note: A packet of information relative to this meeting may be found attached to this agenda in the online Friday Packet.

Respectfully Submitted,

R. Lisle Baker, Chair

The location of this meeting is accessible and reasonable accommodations will be provided to persons with disabilities who require assistance. If you need a reasonable accommodation, please contact the City of Newton's ADA Coordinator, Jini Fairley, at least two business days in advance of the meeting: jfairley@newtonma.gov or (617) 796-1253. The city's TTY/TDD direct line is: 617-796-1089. For the Telecommunications Relay Service (TRS), please dial 711.

ARTICLE 1.

INCORPORATION; FORM OF GOVERNMENT; POWERS OF THE CITY

~~See.~~ **SECTION 1-1. Incorporation.**

The inhabitants of the City of Newton, within the corporate limits as now established or as hereafter may be established in the manner provided by law, shall continue to be a body corporate and politic with perpetual succession under the name "City of Newton."

~~See.~~

SECTION 1-2. Form of Government.

The administration of the fiscal, prudential, and municipal affairs of the city, with the government ~~thereof of the city~~, shall be vested in an executive branch, to consist of the mayor, and a legislative branch, to consist of the city council. The executive branch shall never exercise any legislative power, and the legislative branch shall never exercise any executive power.

~~See.~~

SECTION 1-3. Powers of the City.

Subject only to express limitations on the exercise of any power or function by a city in the constitution or statutes of the Commonwealth, it is the intent and the purpose of the charter to confer upon the city all powers it is possible to confer under the constitution and statutes of the Commonwealth, as fully and as completely as though each such power were specifically and individually enumerated ~~herein~~ in this charter.

~~See.~~

SECTION 1-4. Construction.

The powers of the city under the charter shall be construed liberally in favor of the city, and the specific mention of particular powers is not intended to limit in any way the general powers of the city as stated in ~~Section~~ section 1-3.

~~See.~~

SECTION 1-5. Intergovernmental Relations.

Subject only to express ~~requirements~~ limitations of the constitution and statutes of the Commonwealth, the city may exercise any of its powers and perform any of its functions, and may participate in the financing ~~thereof of any of its powers and functions~~, jointly or in cooperation, by contract or otherwise, with the Commonwealth or any civil division or agency ~~thereof of the Commonwealth~~ or the United States government or any agency ~~thereof of the Unites States government~~.

ARTICLE 3.
EXECUTIVE BRANCH

Sec. SECTION 3-1. Mayor; Election; Term; Compensation.

(a) There shall be a mayor, who shall be elected by and from the voters ~~of the city.~~

(b) The mayor shall be the chief executive officer of the city. The mayor shall devote full time to the office and shall not hold any other elective public office, nor actively engage in any other business, occupation or profession during the term of office as mayor. The mayor shall hold office for the term of 4 years from the first ~~secular~~ day of January following the election and until the mayor's successor is qualified.

(c) No person shall be eligible for election to the office of mayor for a fourth consecutive full term.

(d) The mayor shall receive such salary as the city council shall determine by ordinance ~~from time to time determine,~~ but no change in such salary shall take effect during the current term of the mayor in office at the time of the adoption of the ordinance making such change.

Sec.

SECTION 3-2. Executive Powers; Enforcement of Ordinances; Assistants.

(a) In General —The executive and administrative powers of the city shall be vested solely in the mayor, and may be exercised by the mayor either personally or through the several city agencies under the mayor's general supervision and control. The mayor shall ~~cause~~enforce the laws, ordinances, and orders for the government of the city ~~to be enforced,~~ and shall ~~cause~~keep a record of all official acts as mayor ~~to be kept.~~ To aid the mayor with official mayoral duties, the mayor may appoint ~~1 or more assistants~~staff, fix their salaries and define their duties.

~~(b) Citizen Assistance Officer —The mayor shall appoint a citizen assistance officer in accordance with section 3-3 and fix the officer's salary. The citizen assistance officer shall be responsible for processing citizen complaints and inquiries that are directed or referred to the officer. The citizen assistance officer shall establish and maintain procedures for the examination and appropriate referral of requests for information or assistance on any municipal matter. The citizen assistance officer shall maintain a central file, open to the public, of all inquiries and complaints together with their resolutions. The citizen assistance officer shall analyze data on citizen complaints and inquiries and shall regularly submit reports as directed by the mayor.~~

Sec. (b) The mayor shall appoint a chief administrative officer to coordinate and direct the operations of the various departments and functions of municipal government. The chief administrative officer shall serve at the pleasure of the mayor and be appointed on the basis of having strong administrative and executive qualifications and shall be especially fitted by education, training and experience to perform the duties of the office.

SECTION 3-3. Appointments by Mayor.

~~(a)~~

(a) The mayor shall appoint all city officers, department heads and all volunteer members of city boards, commissions, committees and agencies for whom no other method of appointment is provided by this charter or by law.

(b) Appointments by the mayor of city officers and department heads shall ~~become effective~~take effect 30 days from the date of the first regularly scheduled city council meeting after notice of the proposed appointment is filed with the city clerk, unless the city council rejects the appointment within ~~said~~those 30 days.

(c) ~~All officers and city agencies shall reject such appointment.~~, subject to the civil service laws of the commonwealth, appoint their subordinates and employees to hold office until they are removed by the officer or city agency under whom they serve; but the mayor shall approve all appointments in the police and fire departments, and the mayor shall have the power of removal in the police and fire departments.

(d) Appointments by the mayor of volunteer members of city boards, commissions, committees and agencies shall take effect 60 days from the date of the first regularly scheduled city council meeting after the notice of the proposed appointment is filed with the city clerk, unless the city council rejects the appointment within ~~said~~those 60 days ~~shall reject such appointment. Rejection by the city council shall require a 2/3 vote.~~

~~(b) The mayor shall appoint a collector treasurer for a term coterminous with the mayor's term and until a successor for the position of collector treasurer is qualified unless removed by the mayor prior to the expiration of such term. The mayor shall submit the proposed appointment to the city council as soon as possible after the mayor's term commences or as soon as possible after a vacancy occurs in the collector treasurer's office. The city council must approve this appointment by majority vote of the full council within 90 days from the date on which notice of the proposed appointment is filed with the city clerk as provided in section 3-4, or the proposed appointment shall not take effect. Removal of the collector treasurer by the mayor prior to expiration of the collector treasurer's term in office shall not take effect until approved by majority vote of the full city council. The collector treasurer shall receive and pay out all money belonging to the city according to the order of its authorized officers. No other person shall have authority to pay any bill of any municipal department. The collector treasurer shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as the mayor may prescribe in addition to such duties as may be prescribed by law.~~

(e) ~~(e)~~ Rejection by the city council of an appointment by the mayor under (b) or (d) shall require a 2/3 vote.

(f) Appointments to multiple member bodies may include city employees only if allowed by the multiple member body's enabling language; provided that, unless otherwise required by law, such employees shall not serve as chair of the multiple member body. Unless otherwise required by law, no city employee shall serve on a multiple member body in a seat designated for a resident of the city.

(g) The question on rejection of any appointment made by the mayor shall not be subject to charter objection as provided in ~~subsection (c) of section 2-9. (Acts of 1991, Chap. 50; Acts of 1992, Chap 173.)~~section 2-9(c).

(h) ~~See.~~The mayor shall regularly, but not less frequently than annually, provide to the city clerk and the city council a listing of all vacancies on city boards and commissions, along with an indication of the appointing authority responsible for filling the vacancy. The city clerk shall make the listing available to the public electronically.

SECTION 3-4. Notice of Appointment.

In making appointments, the mayor shall sign and file with the city clerk a notice of appointment, a copy of which shall be filed on the same day with the clerk of the council.

~~See.~~

SECTION 3-5. Removal of Officials; Vacancy Notification

(a) The mayor may remove any person appointed by the mayor by filing written notice ~~thereof~~the removal with the city clerk.

(b) ~~See.~~If the position of a city officer or department head becomes vacant, the mayor shall notify the city clerk and the city council within 48 hours.

SECTION 3-6. Temporary Appointments.

~~Whenever~~

If there is a vacancy in an office appointed by the mayor ~~occurs~~, whether by reason of disability, death, resignation or removal from office for any reason, the mayor may appoint the head of another city office or agency, or a city officer or employee, or some other person to perform the duties of the office for a period not to exceed 3 months. ~~Whenever~~If a vacancy continues beyond 3 months, the mayor may make a second 3-month appointment, but no temporary appointment shall be continued beyond 6 months without the approval of the city council.

~~See.~~

SECTION 3-7. Communications to the City Council; Calling of Special Meetings of the City Council.

(a) ~~Communications~~— — Within 6 weeks following the start of each fiscal year, the mayor shall submit to the city council, and make available to the public, a complete report on the financial and administrative activities of the city for the preceding fiscal year. The mayor shall ~~from time to time throughout the year~~not less frequently than semi-annually, by written communications to

the city council, ~~keep it fully informed as~~ provide full disclosure of municipal revenues and all information related to the financial condition and future needs of the city and shall recommend such measures to ~~the council~~ as the mayor ~~judges~~ determines the needs of the city require.

(b) Calling Special Meetings — The mayor may ~~at any time~~ call a special meeting of the city council by causing a notice of such meeting that specifies the matters which the mayor desires to be considered to be left at the usual place of residence of each councilor or given to in hand ~~and public.~~ Public notice of the meeting ~~to~~ shall be posted at least 2448 hours in advance of the time set for the meeting, ~~or~~ for such lesser period as the mayor may determine in case of an emergency, of which the mayor shall be the judge.

~~See.~~

SECTION 3-8. Adoption of Measures; Mayor's Veto.

Not sooner than 24 nor more than 96 hours after the adjournment of any meeting of the city council, the clerk of the council shall present to the mayor the record of the proceedings of the meeting and copies of all measures passed at the meeting. ~~If during the 24 hours immediately following such adjournment, a motion to reconsider is filed with the clerk of the council by any member of the city council who is entitled to make such a motion, the measure shall not be presented to the mayor but shall be presented to the city council for reconsideration at its next meeting.~~

, unless a city councilor has filed with the city clerk a motion to reconsider the measure under section 2-9(d). Every measure relative to the affairs of the city passed by the city council shall be presented to the mayor for the mayor's approval except: (i) any measure relating to the internal affairs of the city council; (ii) any measure relating to the election of officers whose election by the city council is authorized by law or this charter; ~~or (iii) the budget;~~ (iii) a matter exclusively within the jurisdiction of the city council; (iv) the budget; or (v) an action taken by the city council under section 10-2(d) or 10-3(a) in response to an initiative or referendum petition.

Within 10 days of receipt of a measure, the mayor shall return it to the clerk of the council with or without approval, or with a veto. Upon the mayor's approval of a measure it shall be considered adopted. If a measure is vetoed, the mayor shall attach a written statement explaining the reasons for the veto. Measures vetoed by the mayor shall be considered again by the city council at a meeting ~~no~~ not sooner than 7 days after receipt of the mayor's veto. If the city council, ~~notwithstanding such veto by the mayor,~~ shall again pass such vetoed measure by a 2/3 vote of the ~~full~~ council then in office, it shall then be considered adopted. Every measure not approved or vetoed by the mayor shall be considered adopted 10 days after it has been presented to the mayor.

~~See.~~

SECTION 3-9. Temporary Absence from the Office of the Mayor.

Whenever

If by reason of sickness, absence from the city or ~~other cause~~ otherwise, the mayor shall be unable to attend to perform the duties of the office of the mayor, the president of the city council ~~or the vice president of the city council in the event of the president's disability through sickness or absence~~ shall, as acting mayor, possess the powers of the mayor only in those matters ~~not admitting of delay~~ requiring immediate attention, but the acting mayor shall have no power to make permanent appointments. If neither the mayor nor the president of the city council is able to perform the duties of the office of the mayor, the vice-president of the city council shall possess the powers of acting mayor. The city council, with approval of the mayor, may provide by ordinance for the handling of certain administrative duties of the mayor by other city councilors during the temporary absence of the mayor.

During any period in which the president or the vice-president of the city council is serving as acting mayor, the acting mayor shall not serve as the presiding officer of the city council.

The restriction contained in section 3-1 relative to holding other office or actively engaging in a business, occupation or profession shall not apply to an acting mayor holding office under this section. See.

SECTION 3-10. Vacancy in the Office of the Mayor.

(a) If a vacancy occurs in the office of the mayor, ~~by death, resignation, removal from office, failure to elect or otherwise~~ at any time preceding the last 9 calendar months of the term for which the mayor was elected, the city council shall ~~forthwith call, at its next regular meeting, introduce a measure calling for~~ a special election to fill the vacancy for the remainder of the unexpired term. ~~and shall, within 30 days, act on that measure. The special election shall be held within 150 days and, if a preliminary election is required under section 8-3, the preliminary election shall be held within 100 days of the calling of the election.~~

(b) If a vacancy occurs in the office of the mayor during the last 9 calendar months of the term for which the mayor was elected, the ~~clerk of the council shall forthwith call a special meeting of the city council and the city council shall by majority vote of the full council elect 1 of its members as acting mayor for the remainder of the unexpired term. If the city council fails to elect an acting mayor as aforesaid within 30 days of the date of the meeting called by the clerk of the council, the president of the city council shall become acting mayor, shall exercise all the rights and powers of the mayor and shall be sworn to the faithful performance of the duties of the office. Upon the election and qualification of any member of the city council as acting mayor under this section, a vacancy shall exist in the member's council seat. ~~president of the city council shall serve as the acting mayor until the next election for mayor is held. If the city council president is unable or unwilling to serve, the vice president of the city council shall serve as mayor. If both the council president and the council vice~~~~

president are unable or unwilling to serve, the council shall elect from among its membership a councilor to serve as the acting mayor.~~The restriction contained in section 3-1 relative to holding other office or actively engaging in a business, occupation or profession shall not apply to an acting mayor holding office under this section.~~ The removal from residency within the city shall create a vacancy in the office. (Referendum of 11-04-75.)

(c) Upon the certification of the results from the next election, the person elected to be mayor shall be immediately sworn and begin serving as mayor and the new mayor shall, in addition to the term for which the member was elected, serve for the balance of the then-unexpired term.

The mayor's removal from residency within the city shall create a vacancy in the office.

ARTICLE 5.
FINANCIAL PROCEDURES

See-SECTION 5-1. Financial Condition of the City

The mayor shall annually prepare a forecast of city revenues, expenditures and the general financial condition of the city. The forecast shall cover at least 5 years and shall include all funds subject to appropriation. The forecast shall also include, but need not be limited to, an identification of factors with significant impact on the financial condition of the city, revenue and expenditure trends, potential sources of new or expanded revenues and long or short-term actions which may enhance the financial condition of the city. The mayor shall submit the forecast to the city council at least 6 months prior to the mayor's submission of the next fiscal year's operating budget and shall make the forecast available to the public for inspection.

SECTION 5-2. Submission of Budget; Budget Message.

Within the period prescribed by state statute, the mayor shall submit to the city council a proposed budget for the ensuing fiscal year, which shall provide a complete financial plan of all city funds and activities for the ensuing fiscal year, an accompanying budget message and supporting documents.

The mayor's message shall explain the budget for all city agencies both in fiscal terms and in terms of work programs. It shall: (i) outline the proposed financial policies of the city for the ensuing fiscal year; (ii) describe the important features of the budget; (iii) indicate any major changes from the current fiscal year in financial policies, expenditures, and revenues and the reasons for such changes; (iv) summarize the city's debt position; and (v) include such other material as the mayor deems desirable or the city council may reasonably require.

~~See.~~The budget shall include funding for legal assistance to the city council and an independent audit of all city accounts. The amount of funding for legal assistance to the city council may be amended by ordinance; provided however, that such an ordinance shall not take effect until the fiscal year following its adoption.

SECTION 5-23. Action on the Budget.

The city council shall adopt the budget, with or without amendments, within 45 days following the day the budget is received by the city council. In amending the budget, the city council may delete or decrease any programs or amounts, except expenditures required by law or for debt service, but it may not increase any programs or amounts.

If the city council fails to take action with respect to any item in the budget within 45 days after receipt of the budget, such amount shall, without any action by the city council, become a part of the appropriations for the year and be available for the purposes specified.

See SECTION 5-34. Capital Inventory and Capital Improvement Program.

(a) ~~Submission~~—The mayor ~~shall prepare and submit to the~~and city council ~~a 5-year capital improvement program at least 6 months prior to receipt~~shall be active stewards of the ~~next fiscal year's operating budget.~~city's physical assets.

~~(b) Contents~~—~~The capital improvement program~~(b) Capital Inventory — The mayor shall establish and update not less frequently than annually, an inventory of significant capital assets, such as: buildings; infrastructure (water, sewer, storm water, and road systems); moveable equipment; and such other property as determined by ordinance. The city council shall, by ordinance, establish the requirements of the inventory, such as: age; condition; maintenance and repair history; remaining useful life; and other features the city council deems appropriate.

(c) Capital Improvement Program— The mayor shall create a capital improvement program, which shall include: (i) a clear summary of its contents; (ii) a list of all capital improvements proposed to be undertaken during the next 5 fiscal years with supporting data and rationale; (iii) cost estimates, method of financing and recommended time schedules; and (iv) the estimated annual cost of operating and maintaining the ~~facilities~~capital assets included. The ~~above information~~capital improvement program shall be revised and extended ~~each year~~annually.

~~(c) Public Hearing~~—~~The city council shall publish in 1 or more newspapers of general circulation in~~(d) Submission — The mayor shall submit to the city council the ~~general summary of inventory and the 5-year capital improvement program and a notice stating: (i) at least 6 months prior to the times and places where copies~~mayor's submission of the operating budget for the next fiscal year.

(e) Public Hearing—The city council shall make the proposed capital improvement program ~~are~~ available ~~for inspection by~~to the public; ~~and (ii) the date, time and place, not less than 2 weeks after the publication, when a~~ and shall hold at least 1 public hearing, in accordance with state law, on the capital improvement program ~~will be held by the city council.~~

(d) Adoption — After the public hearing, concurrently with the passage of the next fiscal year's budget, the city council may amend and shall, by resolution, adopt the capital improvement program ~~with or without amendments.~~

(Referendum of 11-04-75.)

See (g) Annual Report—The mayor shall annually report on the city’s progress regarding the capital improvement program.

SECTION 5-45. Contracts.

All contracts entered into for or in behalf of the city by any officer or city agency shall be subject to the approval of the mayor, unless otherwise provided by law.

SECTION 5-6. Independent Audit

The city council shall annually provide for an independent audit of all city funds to be conducted by a certified public accountant in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The city council shall, by ordinance, establish procedures for oversight and administration of the annual audit including: (i) method of selection of an independent auditor; (ii) the scope of the audit; and (iii) receipt of the report and any recommendations from the auditor, including recommendations regarding internal controls.

ARTICLE 6.
ADMINISTRATIVE DEPARTMENTS

Sec. SECTION 6-1. Reorganization Plans by City Council.

~~Except as otherwise provided by law or this charter, the city council may by ordinance: (i) reorganize, consolidate or abolish any existing city agency in whole or in part; (ii) establish new city agencies; and (iii) prescribe the functions of any city agencies. All city agencies under the direction and supervision of the mayor shall be headed and administered by officers appointed by the mayor.~~

Sec. 6-2. Reorganization Plans by Mayor.

(a) The mayor may, ~~from time to time,~~ prepare and submit to the city council reorganization plans which may, subject to applicable law and this charter, reorganize, consolidate or abolish any city agency, in whole or in part, or establish new city agencies as the mayor considers necessary or expedient. The reorganization plan shall be accompanied by an explanatory memo which shall include: __ (i) reference to any ordinances to be repealed or modified; and (ii) a summary of proposed ordinance language changes to be put into effect by the plan.

(b) Every reorganization plan shall, upon receipt by the ~~clerk of the city~~ council, be referred to an appropriate committee of the city council which shall, not more than 30 days ~~later~~after receipt of the plan, hold a public hearing on the matter and shall, not later than the second regular meeting of the city council following the hearing, report either that it approves or disapproves of the plan. A reorganization plan shall become effective 90 days after the date it is received by the city council unless the city council has prior to that date voted to disapprove the reorganization plan or unless a later effective date is specified in the plan. A reorganization plan presented by the mayor to the city council under this section ~~may~~shall not be amended by the city council but shall either be approved or rejected as submitted ~~and~~. Reorganization plans shall not be subject to charter objection as provided in subsection (c) of section 2-9-(c).

~~(Referendum of 11-04-75; Acts of 1992, Chap 174.)~~

~~Sec. (c) The mayor shall provide notice, not later than March 1, to the city council of any reorganization plan reasonably expected to affect the budget for the ensuing fiscal year.~~

SECTION 6-32. Publication of Reorganization Plan.

~~An~~

The city clerk shall maintain an up-to-date record of any reorganization plan adopted under this article ~~shall be kept on file in the office of the city clerk~~ and copies of all such plans shall be included as an appendix in any publication of the ordinances of the city.

Proposed Charter	Current Charter
<p>PREAMBLE We, the people of Newton, in order to reaffirm the customary and traditional liberties of the people with respect to the conduct of our local government, adopt this charter with the expectation and intent that the charter will continue and enhance the city’s strong traditions of active voter participation; ethical, transparent and responsive leadership; wise use of public resources; respect for all in the community; and an engaged populace. We expect and intend that our government will be welcoming and inclusive and will promote equality and respect for all people.</p> <p>Definitions Unless the context clearly requires otherwise, the following words as used in this charter shall have the following meanings:</p> <p>“Charter”, the city charter and any amendments to the charter made through any of the methods provided under Article LXXXIX of the Amendments to the Constitution of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.</p> <p>“City”, the city of Newton.</p> <p>“City agency”, any board, commission, committee, council, department or office of the city government; provided, however, that “city agency” shall not include a neighborhood area council as provided in article 9.</p> <p>“Council member”, a councilor-by-ward or councilor-at-large.</p> <p>“Emergency”, a sudden, unexpected, unforeseen happening, occurrence or condition which necessitates immediate action or response.</p> <p>“Full council”, the entire authorized complement of the city council notwithstanding any vacancies which might exist.</p> <p>“Initiative measure”, a measure proposed by initiative procedures under the charter.</p> <p>“Majority vote”, a majority of those present and voting; provided, however, that a quorum of the body shall be present.</p> <p>“Measure”, an ordinance passed or which could be passed by the city council or an order, resolution, vote</p>	<p>Sec. 11-13. Definitions.</p> <p>Unless another meaning is clearly apparent from the manner in which the word is used, the following words as used in this charter shall have the following meanings:</p> <p>“Charter”, the charter and any amendments to the charter made through any of the methods provided under Article LXXXIX of the Amendments to the State Constitution.</p> <p>“City”, the city of Newton.</p> <p>“City agency”, any board, commission, committee, council, department or office of the city government; provided, however, that “city agency” shall not include a neighborhood area council as provided in article 9.</p> <p>“Full council”, the entire authorized complement of the city council notwithstanding any vacancies which might exist.</p> <p>“Initiative measure”, a measure proposed by initiative procedures under the charter.</p> <p>“Majority vote”, a majority of those present and voting; provided, however, that a quorum of the body shall be present.</p> <p>“Measure”, an ordinance passed or which could be passed by the city council or an order, resolution, vote</p>

Proposed Charter	Current Charter
<p>or other proceeding passed or which could be passed by the city council or the school committee.</p> <p>“Multiple member body”, any board, commission or committee consisting of 2 or more persons, whether elected or appointed or otherwise constituted, but not including the city council, the school committee or an ad hoc or advisory committee appointed by the mayor.</p> <p>“Referendum measure”, a measure that is protested by referendum procedures under this charter.</p> <p>“Reorganization plan”, a plan submitted by the mayor to the city council, which proposes the abolition or consolidation of 1 or more city agencies, including the reassignment of significant functions from 1 agency to another, or the establishment of 1 or more new city agencies as deemed necessary to deliver 1 or more municipal services.</p> <p>“Voters”, the registered voters of the city of Newton.</p>	<p>or other proceeding passed or which could be passed by the city council or the school committee.</p> <p>“Referendum measure”, a measure that is protested by referendum procedures under this charter.</p> <p>“Voters”, the registered voters of the city of Newton.</p>
<p>ARTICLE 1 INCORPORATION; FORM OF GOVERNMENT; POWERS OF THE CITY</p> <p>SECTION 1-1. Incorporation</p> <p>The inhabitants of the City of Newton, within the corporate limits as now established or as hereafter may be established in the manner provided by law, shall continue to be a body corporate and politic with perpetual succession under the name "City of Newton."</p>	<p>ARTICLE 1. INCORPORATION; FORM OF GOVERNMENT; POWERS OF THE CITY</p> <p>Sec. 1-1. Incorporation.</p> <p>The inhabitants of the City of Newton, within the corporate limits as now established or as hereafter may be established in the manner provided by law, shall continue to be a body corporate and politic with perpetual succession under the name "City of Newton."</p>
<p>SECTION 1-2. Form of Government</p> <p>The administration of the fiscal, prudential, and municipal affairs of the city, with the government of the city, shall be vested in an executive branch, to consist of the mayor, and a legislative branch, to consist of the city council. The executive branch shall never exercise any legislative power, and the legislative branch shall never exercise any executive power.</p>	<p>Sec. 1 2. Form of Government.</p> <p>The administration of the fiscal, prudential, and municipal affairs of the city, with the government thereof, shall be vested in an executive branch, to consist of the mayor, and a legislative branch, to consist of the city council. The executive branch shall never exercise any legislative power, and the legislative branch shall never exercise any executive power.</p>
<p>SECTION 1-3. Powers of the City</p> <p>Subject only to express limitations on the exercise of any power or function by a city in the constitution or statutes of the Commonwealth, it is the intent and the purpose of the charter to confer upon the city all powers</p>	<p>Sec. 1 3. Powers of the City.</p> <p>Subject only to express limitations on the exercise of any power or function by a city in the constitution or statutes of the Commonwealth, it is the intent and the purpose of the charter to confer upon the city all powers</p>

Proposed Charter	Current Charter
<p>it is possible to confer under the constitution and statutes of the Commonwealth, as fully and as completely as though each such power were specifically and individually enumerated in this charter.</p>	<p>it is possible to confer under the constitution and statutes of the Commonwealth, as fully and as completely as though each such power were specifically and individually enumerated herein.</p>
<p>SECTION 1-4. Construction</p> <p>The powers of the city under the charter shall be construed liberally in favor of the city, and the specific mention of particular powers is not intended to limit in any way the general powers of the city as stated in section 1-3.</p>	<p>Sec. 1 4. Construction.</p> <p>The powers of the city under the charter shall be construed liberally in favor of the city, and the specific mention of particular powers is not intended to limit in any way the general powers of the city as stated in Section 1 3.</p>
<p>SECTION 1-5. Intergovernmental Relations</p> <p>Subject only to express limitations of the constitution and statutes of the Commonwealth, the city may exercise any of its powers and perform any of its functions, and may participate in the financing of any of its powers and functions, jointly or in cooperation, by contract or otherwise, with the Commonwealth or any civil division or agency of the Commonwealth or the United States government or any agency of the United States government.</p>	<p>Sec. 1 5. Intergovernmental Relations.</p> <p>Subject to express requirements of the constitution and statutes of the Commonwealth, the city may exercise any of its powers and perform any of its functions, and may participate in the financing thereof, jointly or in cooperation, by contract or otherwise, with the Commonwealth or any civil division or agency thereof or the United States government or any agency thereof.</p>

<p>ARTICLE 3 EXECUTIVE BRANCH</p> <p>SECTION 3-1. Mayor; Election; Term; Compensation</p> <p>(a) There shall be a mayor, <i>who shall be</i> elected by and from the voters of the city.</p> <p>(b) The mayor shall be the chief executive officer of the city. The mayor shall devote full time to the office and shall not hold any other elective public office, nor actively engage in any other business, occupation or profession during the term of office as mayor. The mayor shall hold office for the term of 4 years from the <i>first day</i> of January following the election and until the mayor’s successor is qualified.</p> <p>(c) <i>No person shall be eligible for election to the office of mayor for a fourth consecutive full term.</i></p> <p>(d) The mayor shall receive such salary as the city council <i>shall determine by ordinance</i>, but no change in such salary shall take effect during the current term of the mayor in office at the time of the adoption of the ordinance making such change.</p>	<p>ARTICLE 3. EXECUTIVE BRANCH</p> <p>Sec. 3-1. Mayor; Election; Term; Compensation.</p> <p>There shall be a mayor elected by and from the voters. The mayor shall be the chief executive officer of the city. The mayor shall devote full time to the office and shall not hold any other elective public office, nor actively engage in any other business, occupation or profession during the term of office as mayor. The mayor shall hold office for the term of 4 years from the first secular day of January following the election and until the mayor’s successor is qualified.</p> <p>The mayor shall receive such salary as the city council shall by ordinance from time to time determine but no change in such salary shall take effect during the current term of the mayor in office at the time of the adoption of the ordinance making such change.</p>
<p>SECTION 3-2. Executive Powers; Enforcement of Ordinances; Assistants</p> <p>(a) <i>In General</i> —The executive and administrative powers of the city shall be vested solely in the mayor and may be exercised by the mayor either personally or through the several city agencies under the mayor’s general supervision and control. The mayor shall enforce the laws, ordinances and orders for the government of the city, and shall keep a record of all official acts as mayor. To aid the mayor with official mayoral duties, the mayor may appoint <i>staff</i>, fix their salaries and define their duties.</p> <p>(b) <i>The mayor shall appoint a chief administrative officer to coordinate and direct the operations of the various departments and functions of municipal government. The chief administrative officer shall serve at the pleasure of the mayor and be appointed on the basis of having strong administrative and executive qualifications and shall be especially fitted by education, training and experience to perform the duties of the office.</i></p>	<p>Sec. 3-2. Executive Powers; Enforcement of Ordinances; Assistants.</p> <p>(a) In General—The executive and administrative powers of the city shall be vested solely in the mayor, and may be exercised by the mayor either personally or through the several city agencies under the mayor’s general supervision and control. The mayor shall cause the laws, ordinances, and orders for the government of the city to be enforced, and shall cause a record of all official acts as mayor to be kept. To aid the mayor with official mayoral duties, the mayor may appoint 1 or more assistants, fix their salaries and define their duties.</p> <p><i>(b) Citizen Assistance Officer—The mayor shall appoint a citizen assistance officer in accordance with section 3-3 and fix the officer’s salary. The citizen assistance officer shall be responsible for processing citizen complaints and inquiries that are directed or referred to the officer. The citizen assistance officer shall establish and maintain procedures for the examination and appropriate referral of requests for information or assistance on any municipal matter. The citizen assistance officer shall maintain a central file, open to the public, of all inquiries and complaints together with</i></p>

	<p>their resolutions. The citizen assistance officer shall analyze data on citizen complaints and inquiries and shall regularly submit reports as directed by the mayor.</p>
<p>SECTION 3-3. Appointments by Mayor</p> <p>(a) The mayor shall appoint all city officers, department heads and all volunteer members of city boards, commissions, committees and agencies for whom no other method of appointment is provided by this charter or by law.</p> <p>(b) Appointments by the mayor of city officers and department heads shall take effect 30 days from the date of the first regularly scheduled city council meeting after notice of the proposed appointment is filed with the city clerk, unless the city council rejects the appointment within those 30 days.</p> <p>(c) All officers and city agencies shall, subject to the civil service laws of the commonwealth, appoint their subordinates and employees to hold office until they are removed by the officer or city agency under whom they serve; but the mayor shall approve all appointments in the police and fire departments, and the mayor shall have the power of removal in the police and fire departments.</p> <p>(d) Appointments by the mayor of volunteer members of city boards, commissions, committees and agencies shall take effect 60 days from the date of the first regularly scheduled city council meeting after the notice of the proposed appointment is filed with the city clerk, unless the city council rejects the appointment within those 60 days.</p> <p>(e) Rejection by the city council of an appointment by the mayor under (b) or (d) shall require a 2/3 vote.</p> <p>(f) Appointments to multiple member bodies may include city employees only if allowed by the multiple member body's enabling language; provided that, unless otherwise required by law, such employees shall not serve as chair of the multiple member body. Unless otherwise required by law, no city employee shall serve on a multiple member body in a seat designated for a resident of the city.</p> <p>(g) The question on rejection of any appointment made</p>	<p>Sec. 3-3. Appointments by Mayor.</p> <p>(a) The mayor shall appoint all city officers, department heads and all volunteer members of city boards, commissions, committees and agencies for whom no other method of appointment is provided by this charter or by law. Appointments by the mayor of city officers and department heads shall become effective 30 days from the date of the first regularly scheduled city council meeting after notice of the proposed appointment is filed with the city clerk, unless the city council within said 30 days shall reject such appointment. Appointments by the mayor of volunteer members of city boards, commissions, committees and agencies shall take effect 60 days from the date of the first regularly scheduled city council meeting after the notice of the proposed appointment is filed with the city clerk, unless the city council within said 60 days shall reject such appointment. Rejection by the city council shall require a 2/3 vote.</p> <p>(b) The mayor shall appoint a collector-treasurer for a term coterminous with the mayor's term and until a successor for the position of collector-treasurer is qualified unless removed by the mayor prior to the expiration of such term. The mayor shall submit the proposed appointment to the city council as soon as possible after the mayor's term commences or as soon as possible after a vacancy occurs in the collector-treasurer's office. The city council must approve this appointment by majority vote of the full council within 90 days from the date on which notice of the proposed appointment is filed with the city clerk as provided in section 3-4, or the proposed appointment shall not take effect. Removal of the collector-treasurer by the mayor prior to expiration of the collector-treasurer's term in office shall not take effect until approved by majority vote of the full city council. The collector-treasurer shall receive and pay out all money belonging to the city according to the order of its authorized officers. No other person shall have authority to pay any bill of any municipal department. The collector-treasurer shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as the mayor may prescribe in addition to such duties as may be prescribed by law.</p> <p>(c) The question on rejection of any appointment made</p>

<p>by the mayor shall not be subject to charter objection as provided in section 2-9(c).</p> <p>(h) The mayor shall regularly, but not less frequently than annually, provide to the city clerk and the city council a listing of all vacancies on city boards and commissions, along with an indication of the appointing authority responsible for filling the vacancy. The city clerk shall make the listing available to the public electronically.</p>	<p>by the mayor shall not be subject to charter objection as provided in subsection (c) of section 2-9. (Acts of 1991, Chap. 50; Acts of 1992, Chap 173.)</p>
<p>SECTION 3-4. Notice of Appointment</p> <p>In making appointments, the mayor shall sign and file with the city clerk a notice of appointment, a copy of which shall be filed on the same day with the clerk of the council.</p>	<p>Sec. 3-4. Notice of Appointment.</p> <p>In making appointments, the mayor shall sign and file with the city clerk a notice of appointment, a copy of which shall be filed on the same day with the clerk of the council.</p>
<p>SECTION 3-5. Removal of Officials; Vacancy Notification</p> <p>(a) The mayor may remove any person appointed by the mayor by filing written notice of the removal with the city clerk.</p> <p>(b) If the position of a city officer or department head becomes vacant, the mayor shall notify the city clerk and the city council within 48 hours.</p>	<p>Sec. 3-5. Removal of Officials.</p> <p>The mayor may remove any person appointed by the mayor by filing written notice thereof with the city clerk.</p>
<p>SECTION 3-6. Temporary Appointments</p> <p>If there is a vacancy in an office appointed by the mayor, whether by reason of disability, death, resignation or removal from office for any reason, the mayor may appoint the head of another city office or agency, or a city officer or employee, or some other person to perform the duties of the office for a period not to exceed 3 months. If a vacancy continues beyond 3 months, the mayor may make a second 3-month appointment, but no temporary appointment shall be continued beyond 6 months without the approval of the city council.</p>	<p>Sec. 3-6. Temporary Appointments.</p> <p>Whenever a vacancy in an office appointed by the mayor occurs, whether by reason of disability, death, resignation or removal from office for any reason, the mayor may appoint the head of another city office or agency, or a city officer or employee, or some other person to perform the duties of the office for a period not to exceed 3 months. Whenever a vacancy continues beyond 3 months, the mayor may make a second 3-month appointment, but no temporary appointment shall be continued beyond 6 months without the approval of the city council.</p>
<p>SECTION 3-7. Communications to the City Council; Calling of Special Meetings of the City Council</p> <p>(a) <u>Communications</u> — Within 6 weeks following the start of each fiscal year, the mayor shall submit to the city council, and make available to the public, a complete report on the financial and administrative activities of the city for the preceding fiscal year. The mayor shall not less frequently than semi-annually, by written</p>	<p>Sec. 3-7. Communications to the City Council; Calling of Special Meetings of the City Council.</p> <p>(a) Communications—Within 6 weeks following the start of each fiscal year, the mayor shall submit to the city council, and make available to the public, a complete report on the financial and administrative activities of the city for the preceding fiscal year. The mayor shall from time to time throughout the year, by</p>

<p>communications to the city council, provide full disclosure of municipal revenues and all information related to the financial condition and future needs of the city and shall recommend such measures to the council as the mayor determines the needs of the city require.</p> <p>(b) <u>Calling Special Meetings</u> —The mayor may call a special meeting of the city council by causing a notice of such meeting that specifies the matters which the mayor desires to be considered to be left at the usual place of residence of each councilor or given to in hand. Public notice of the meeting shall be posted at least 48 hours in advance of the time set for the meeting, or for such lesser period as the mayor may determine in case of an emergency, of which the mayor shall be the judge.</p>	<p>written communications to the city council, keep it fully informed as to the financial condition and future needs of the city and shall recommend such measures to it as the mayor judges the needs of the city require.</p> <p>(b) Calling Special Meetings—The mayor may at any time call a special meeting of the city council by causing a notice of such meeting that specifies the matters which the mayor desires to be considered to be left at the usual place of residence of each councilor or given to in hand and public notice of the meeting to be posted at least 24 hours in advance of the time set for the meeting; or such lesser period as the mayor may determine in case of an emergency, of which the mayor shall be the judge.</p>
<p>SECTION 3-8. Adoption of Measures; Mayor's Veto</p> <p>Not sooner than 24 nor more than 96 hours after the adjournment of any meeting of the city council, the clerk of the council shall present to the mayor the record of the proceedings of the meeting and copies of all measures passed at the meeting, unless a city councilor has filed with the city clerk a motion to reconsider the measure under section 2-9(d). Every measure relative to the affairs of the city passed by the city council shall be presented to the mayor for the mayor’s approval except: (i) any measure relating to the internal affairs of the city council; (ii) any measure relating to the election of officers whose election by the city council is authorized by law or this charter; (iii) a matter exclusively within the jurisdiction of the city council; (iv) the budget; or (v) an action taken by the city council under section 10-2(d) or 10-3(a) in response to an initiative or referendum petition.</p> <p>Within 10 days of receipt of a measure, the mayor shall return it to the clerk of the council with or without approval, or with a veto. Upon the mayor's approval of a measure it shall be considered adopted. If a measure is vetoed, the mayor shall attach a written statement explaining the reasons for the veto. Measures vetoed by the mayor shall be considered again by the city council at a meeting not sooner than 7 days after receipt of the mayor's veto. If the city council shall again pass such vetoed measure by a 2/3 vote of the council then in office, it shall then be considered adopted. Every measure not approved or vetoed by the mayor shall be</p>	<p>Sec. 3-8. Adoption of Measures; Mayor's Veto.</p> <p>Not sooner than 24 nor more than 96 hours after the adjournment of any meeting of the city council, the clerk of the council shall present to the mayor the record of the proceedings of the meeting and copies of all measures passed at the meeting. If during the 24 hours immediately following such adjournment, a motion to reconsider is filed with the clerk of the council by any member of the city council who is entitled to make such a motion, the measure shall not be presented to the mayor but shall be presented to the city council for reconsideration at its next meeting.</p> <p>Every measure relative to the affairs of the city passed by the city council shall be presented to the mayor for the mayor’s approval except: (i) any measure relating to the internal affairs of the city council; (ii) any measure relating to the election of officers whose election by the city council is authorized by law or this charter; or (iii) the budget.</p> <p>Within 10 days of receipt of a measure, the mayor shall return it to the clerk of the council with or without approval, or with a veto. Upon the mayor's approval of a measure it shall be considered adopted. If a measure is vetoed, the mayor shall attach a written statement explaining the reasons for the veto. Measures vetoed by the mayor shall be considered again by the city council at a meeting no sooner than 7 days after receipt of the mayor's veto. If the city council, notwithstanding such veto by the mayor, shall again pass such measure by a 2/3 vote of the full council, it shall then be considered adopted. Every measure not approved or vetoed by the</p>

<p>considered adopted 10 days after it has been presented to the mayor.</p>	<p>mayor shall be considered adopted 10 days after it has been presented to the mayor.</p>
<p>SECTION 3-9. Temporary Absence from the Office of the Mayor</p> <p>If by reason of sickness, absence from the city or otherwise, the mayor is unable to perform the duties of the office of the mayor, the president of the city council shall, as acting mayor, possess the powers of the mayor only in those matters requiring immediate attention, but the acting mayor shall have no power to make permanent appointments. If neither the mayor nor the president of the city council is able to perform the duties of the office of the mayor, the vice-president of the city council shall possess the powers of acting mayor. The city council, with approval of the mayor, may provide by ordinance for the handling of certain administrative duties of the mayor by other city councilors during the temporary absence of the mayor.</p> <p>During any period in which the president or the vice-president of the city council is serving as acting mayor, the acting mayor shall not serve as the presiding officer of the city council.</p> <p>The restriction contained in section 3-1 relative to holding other office or actively engaging in a business, occupation or profession shall not apply to an acting mayor holding office under this section.</p>	<p>Sec. 3-9. Temporary Absence from the Office of the Mayor.</p> <p>Whenever by reason of sickness, absence from the city or other cause, the mayor shall be unable to attend to the duties of the office of the mayor, the president of the city council or the vice-president of the city council in the event of the president’s disability through sickness or absence shall, as acting mayor, possess the powers of the mayor only in those matters not admitting of delay, but shall have no power to make permanent appointments. During any period in which the president or the vice-president of the city council is serving as acting mayor, the acting mayor shall not serve as the presiding officer of the city council.</p>
<p>SECTION 3-10. Vacancy in the Office of the Mayor</p> <p>(a) If a vacancy occurs in the office of the mayor, at any time preceding the last 9 calendar months of the term for which the mayor was elected, the city council shall, at its next regular meeting, introduce a measure calling for a special election to fill the vacancy for the remainder of the unexpired term and shall, within 30 days, act on that measure. The special election shall be held within 150 days and, if a preliminary election is required under section 8-3, the preliminary election shall be held within 100 days of the calling of the election.</p> <p>(b) If a vacancy occurs in the office of the mayor during the last 9 calendar months of the term for which the mayor was elected, the president of the city council shall serve as the acting mayor until the next election for mayor is held. If the city council president is unable or unwilling to serve, the vice president of the city council shall serve as mayor. If both the council president and</p>	<p>Sec. 3-10. Vacancy in the Office of the Mayor.</p> <p>If a vacancy occurs in the office of the mayor, by death, resignation, removal from office, failure to elect or otherwise at any time preceding the last 9 calendar months of the term for which the mayor was elected, the city council shall forthwith call a special election to fill the vacancy for the remainder of the unexpired term. If a vacancy occurs in the office of the mayor during the last 9 calendar months of the term for which the mayor was elected, the clerk of the council shall forthwith call a special meeting of the city council and the city council shall by majority vote of the full council elect 1 of its members as acting mayor for the remainder of the unexpired term. If the city council fails to elect an acting mayor as aforesaid within 30 days of the date of the meeting called by the clerk of the council, the president of the city council shall become acting mayor, shall exercise all the rights and powers of the mayor and shall be sworn to the faithful performance of the duties of the</p>

the council vice president are unable or unwilling to serve, the council shall elect from among its membership a councilor to serve as the acting mayor.

(c) Upon the certification of the results from the next election, the person elected to be mayor shall be immediately sworn and begin serving as mayor and the new mayor shall, in addition to the term for which the member was elected, serve for the balance of the then-unexpired term.

The mayor's removal from residency within the city shall create a vacancy in the office.

office. Upon the election and qualification of any member of the city council as acting mayor under this section, a vacancy shall exist in the member's council seat.

The restriction contained in section 3-1 relative to holding other office or actively engaging in a business, occupation or profession shall not apply to an acting mayor holding office under this section. The removal from residency within the city shall create a vacancy in the office. (Referendum of 11-04-75.)

<p>ARTICLE 5 FINANCIAL PROCEDURES</p> <p>SECTION 5-1. Financial Condition of the City</p> <p>The mayor shall annually prepare a forecast of city revenues, expenditures and the general financial condition of the city. The forecast shall cover at least 5 years and shall include all funds subject to appropriation. The forecast shall also include, but need not be limited to, an identification of factors with significant impact on the financial condition of the city, revenue and expenditure trends, potential sources of new or expanded revenues and long or short-term actions which may enhance the financial condition of the city. The mayor shall submit the forecast to the city council at least 6 months prior to the mayor's submission of the next fiscal year's operating budget and shall make the forecast available to the public for inspection.</p>	<p>ARTICLE 5. FINANCIAL PROCEDURES</p>
<p>SECTION 5-2. Submission of Budget; Budget Message</p> <p>Within the period prescribed by state statute, the mayor shall submit to the city council a proposed budget for the ensuing fiscal year, which shall provide a complete financial plan of all city funds and activities for the ensuing fiscal year, an accompanying budget message and supporting documents.</p> <p>The mayor's message shall explain the budget for all city agencies both in fiscal terms and in terms of work programs. It shall: (i) outline the proposed financial policies of the city for the ensuing fiscal year; (ii) describe the important features of the budget; (iii) indicate any major changes from the current fiscal year in financial policies, expenditures, and revenues and the reasons for such changes; (iv) summarize the city's debt position; and (v) include such other material as the mayor deems desirable or the city council may reasonably require.</p> <p>The budget shall include funding for legal assistance to the city council and an independent audit of all city accounts. The amount of funding for legal assistance to the city council may be amended by ordinance; provided however, that such an ordinance shall not take effect until the fiscal year following its adoption.</p>	<p>Sec. 5-1. Submission of Budget; Budget Message.</p> <p>Within the period prescribed by state statute, the mayor shall submit to the city council a proposed budget for the ensuing fiscal year, which shall provide a complete financial plan of all city funds and activities for the ensuing fiscal year, an accompanying budget message and supporting documents.</p> <p>The mayor's message shall explain the budget for all city agencies both in fiscal terms and in terms of work programs. It shall: (i) outline the proposed financial policies of the city for the ensuing fiscal year; (ii) describe the important features of the budget; (iii) indicate any major changes from the current fiscal year in financial policies, expenditures, and revenues and the reasons for such changes; (iv) summarize the city's debt position; and (v) include such other material as the mayor deems desirable or the city council may reasonably require.</p>
<p>SECTION 5-3. Action on the Budget</p> <p>The city council shall adopt the budget, with or without</p>	<p>Sec. 5-2. Action on the Budget.</p> <p>The city council shall adopt the budget, with or without</p>

<p>amendments, within 45 days following the day the budget is received by the city council. In amending the budget, the city council may delete or decrease any programs or amounts, except expenditures required by law or for debt service, but it may not increase any programs or amounts.</p> <p>If the city council fails to take action with respect to any item in the budget within 45 days after receipt of the budget, such amount shall, without any action by the city council, become a part of the appropriations for the year and be available for the purposes specified.</p>	<p>amendments, within 45 days following the day the budget is received by the city council. In amending the budget, the city council may delete or decrease any programs or amounts, except expenditures required by law or for debt service, but it may not increase any programs or amounts.</p> <p>If the city council fails to take action with respect to any item in the budget within 45 days after receipt of the budget, such amount shall, without any action by the city council, become a part of the appropriations for the year and be available for the purposes specified.</p>
<p>SECTION 5-4. Capital Inventory and Capital Improvement Program</p> <p>(a) The mayor and city council shall be active stewards of the city’s physical assets.</p> <p>(b) <u>Capital Inventory</u> — The mayor shall establish and update not less frequently than annually, an inventory of significant capital assets, such as: buildings; infrastructure (water, sewer, storm water, and road systems); moveable equipment; and such other property as determined by ordinance. The city council shall, by ordinance, establish the requirements of the inventory, such as: age; condition; maintenance and repair history; remaining useful life; and other features the city council deems appropriate.</p> <p>(c) <u>Capital Improvement Program</u>— The mayor shall create a capital improvement program, which shall include: (i) a clear summary of its contents; (ii) a list of all capital improvements proposed to be undertaken during the next 5 fiscal years with supporting data and rationale; (iii) cost estimates, method of financing and recommended time schedules; and (iv) the estimated annual cost of operating and maintaining the capital assets included. The capital improvement program shall be revised and extended annually.</p> <p>(d) <u>Submission</u> — The mayor shall submit to the city council the inventory and the 5-year capital improvement program at least 6 months prior to the mayor’s submission of the operating budget for the next fiscal year.</p> <p>(e) <u>Public Hearing</u>—The city council shall make the proposed capital improvement program available to the public and shall hold at least 1 public hearing, in accordance with state law, on the capital improvement</p>	<p>Sec. 5-3. Capital Improvement Program.</p> <p>(a) <u>Submission</u>—The mayor shall prepare and submit to the city council a 5-year capital improvement program at least 6 months prior to receipt of the next fiscal year’s operating budget.</p> <p>(b) <u>Contents</u>—The capital improvement program shall include: (i) a clear summary of its contents; (ii) a list of all capital improvements proposed to be undertaken during the next 5 fiscal years with supporting data; (iii) cost estimates, method of financing and recommended time schedules; and (iv) the estimated annual cost of operating and maintaining the facilities included. The above information shall be revised and extended each year.</p> <p>(c) <u>Public Hearing</u>—The city council shall publish in 1 or more newspapers of general circulation in the city the general summary of the capital improvement program and a notice stating: (i) the times and places where</p>

<p>program.</p> <p>(f) <u>Adoption</u> —After the public hearing, concurrently with the passage of the next fiscal year's budget, the city council may amend and shall, by resolution, adopt the capital improvement program.</p> <p>(g) <u>Annual Report</u>—The mayor shall annually report on the city's progress regarding the capital improvement program.</p>	<p>copies of the capital improvement program are available for inspection by the public; and (ii) the date, time and place, not less than 2 weeks after the publication, when a public hearing on the program will be held by the city council.</p> <p>(d) Adoption—After the public hearing, concurrently with the passage of the next fiscal year's budget, the city council shall by resolution adopt the capital improvement program with or without amendments. (Referendum of 11-04-75.)</p>
<p>SECTION 5-5. Contracts</p> <p>All contracts entered into for or in behalf of the city by any officer or city agency shall be subject to the approval of the mayor, unless otherwise provided by law.</p>	<p>Sec. 5-4. Contracts.</p> <p>All contracts entered into for or in behalf of the city by any officer or city agency shall be subject to the approval of the mayor.</p>
<p>SECTION 5-6. Independent Audit</p> <p>The city council shall annually provide for an independent audit of all city funds to be conducted by a certified public accountant in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The city council shall, by ordinance, establish procedures for oversight and administration of the annual audit including: (i) method of selection of an independent auditor; (ii) the scope of the audit; and (iii) receipt of the report and any recommendations from the auditor, including recommendations regarding internal controls.</p>	

ARTICLE 6

ADMINISTRATIVE DEPARTMENTS

SECTION 6-1. Reorganization Plans

(a) The mayor may prepare and submit to the city council reorganization plans which may, subject to applicable law and this charter, reorganize, consolidate or abolish any city agency, in whole or in part, or establish new city agencies as the mayor considers necessary or expedient. The reorganization plan shall be accompanied by an explanatory memo which shall include:

- (i) reference to any ordinances to be repealed or modified; and
- (ii) a summary of proposed ordinance language changes to be put into effect by the plan.

(b) Every reorganization plan shall, upon receipt by the city council, be referred to an appropriate committee of the city council which shall, not more than 30 days after receipt of the plan, hold a public hearing on the matter and shall, not later than the second regular meeting of the city council following the hearing, report either that it approves or disapproves of the plan. A reorganization plan shall become effective 90 days after the date it is received by the city council unless the city council has prior to that date voted to disapprove the reorganization plan or unless a later effective date is specified in the plan. A reorganization plan presented by the mayor to the city council under this section shall not be amended by the city council but shall either be approved or rejected as submitted. Reorganization plans shall not be subject to charter objection as provided in section 2-9(c).

(c) The mayor shall provide notice, not later than March 1, to the city council of any reorganization plan reasonably expected to affect the budget for the ensuing fiscal year.

SECTION 6-2. Publication of Reorganization Plan

The city clerk shall maintain an up-to-date record of any reorganization plan adopted under this article and copies of all such plans shall be included as an appendix

ARTICLE 6.

ADMINISTRATIVE DEPARTMENTS

Sec. 6-1. Reorganization Plans by City Council.

Except as otherwise provided by law or this charter, the city council may by ordinance: (i) reorganize, consolidate or abolish any existing city agency in whole or in part; (ii) establish new city agencies; and (iii) prescribe the functions of any city agencies. All city agencies under the direction and supervision of the mayor shall be headed and administered by officers appointed by the mayor.

Sec. 6-2. Reorganization Plans by Mayor.

(a) The mayor may, from time to time, prepare and submit to the city council reorganization plans which may, subject to applicable law and this charter, reorganize, consolidate or abolish any city agency, in whole or in part, or establish new city agencies as the mayor considers necessary or expedient. The reorganization plan shall be accompanied by an explanatory memo which shall include: (i) reference to any ordinances to be repealed or modified; and (ii) a summary of proposed ordinance language changes to be put into effect by the plan.

(b) Every reorganization plan shall, upon receipt by the clerk of the council, be referred to an appropriate committee of the city council which shall, not more than 30 days later, hold a public hearing on the matter and shall, not later than the second regular meeting of the city council following the hearing, report either that it approves or disapproves of the plan. A reorganization plan shall become effective 90 days after the date it is received by the city council unless the city council has prior to that date voted to disapprove the reorganization plan or unless a later effective date is specified in the plan. A reorganization plan presented by the mayor to the city council under this section may not be amended by the city council but shall either be approved or rejected as submitted and shall not be subject to charter objection as provided in subsection (c) of section 2-9. (Referendum of 11-04-75; Acts of 1992, Chap 174.)

Sec. 6-3. Publication of Reorganization Plan.

An up-to-date record of any reorganization plan adopted under this article shall be kept on file in the office of the city clerk and copies of all such plans shall

in any publication of the ordinances of the city.

be included as an appendix in any publication of the ordinances of the city.

ARTICLE 3.
EXECUTIVE BRANCH

See-SECTION 3-1. Mayor; Election; Term; Compensation-

(a) There shall be a mayor, who shall be elected by and from the voters ~~of the city.~~

~~(a)~~(b) The mayor shall be the chief executive officer of the city. The mayor shall devote full time to the office and shall not hold any other elective public office, nor actively engage in any other business, occupation or profession during the term of office as mayor. The mayor shall hold office for the term of 4 years from the first ~~secular~~ day of January following the election and until the mayor's successor is qualified.

(c) ~~No person shall be eligible for election to the office of mayor for a fourth consecutive full term.~~

~~(b)~~(d) The mayor shall receive such salary as the city council shall determine by ordinance ~~from time to time determine,~~ but no change in such salary shall take effect during the current term of the mayor in office at the time of the adoption of the ordinance making such change.

~~See-~~

SECTION 3-2. Executive Powers; Enforcement of Ordinances; Assistants-

(a) In General —The executive and administrative powers of the city shall be vested solely in the mayor, and may be exercised by the mayor either personally or through the several city agencies under the mayor's general supervision and control. The mayor shall ~~cause~~enforce the laws, ordinances, and orders for the government of the city ~~to be enforced,~~ and shall ~~cause~~keep a record of all official acts as mayor ~~to be kept.~~ To aid the mayor with official mayoral duties, the mayor may appoint ~~1 or more assistants~~Staff, fix their salaries and define their duties.

~~(b) Citizen Assistance Officer~~ — ~~The mayor shall appoint a citizen assistance officer in accordance with section 3-3 and fix the officer's salary. The citizen assistance officer shall be responsible for processing citizen complaints and inquiries that are directed or referred to the officer. The citizen assistance officer shall establish and maintain procedures for the examination and appropriate referral of requests for information or assistance on any municipal matter. The citizen assistance officer shall maintain a central file, open to the public, of all inquiries and complaints together with their resolutions. The citizen assistance officer shall analyze data on citizen complaints and inquiries and shall regularly submit reports as directed by the mayor.~~

~~See-~~(b) The mayor shall appoint a chief administrative officer to coordinate and direct the operations of the various departments and functions of municipal government. The chief administrative officer shall serve at the pleasure of the mayor and be appointed on the basis of having strong administrative and executive qualifications and shall be especially fitted by education, training and experience to perform the duties of the office.

Commented [JK1]: Charter Commission proposed instituting term Limit of 3 consecutive terms. Recommend holding for separate discussion.

Commented [JK2]: Charter Commission recommended removal of Citizen Assistance Officer from charter – but not necessarily from office. *See also* – letter submitted to city council recommending continued and robust 3-1-1 system.

Commented [JK3]: Recommendation was to add a charter requirement for Chief Administrative Officer, which most administrations have had – though the title seems to have varied causing confusion – this addition was designed to provide consistency.

SECTION 3-3. Appointments by Mayor.

(a)

The mayor shall appoint all city officers, department heads and all volunteer members of city boards, commissions, committees and agencies for whom no other method of appointment is provided by this charter or by law.

(b) Appointments by the mayor of city officers and department heads shall ~~become effective~~take effect 30 days from the date of the first regularly scheduled city council meeting after notice of the proposed appointment is filed with the city clerk, unless the city council ~~rejects the appointment~~within ~~said~~those 30 days.

~~(c) All officers and city agencies shall reject such appointment, subject to the civil service laws of the commonwealth, appoint their subordinates and employees to hold office until they are removed by the officer or city agency under whom they serve; but the mayor shall approve all appointments in the police and fire departments, and the mayor shall have the power of removal in the police and fire departments.~~

Commented [JK4]: Charter provision stating that employees (outside of fire and police department) are hired by department heads and subject to civil service laws. This codifies provisions that had previously been adopted through home rule legislation - accepted by Newton, it did not represent a substantive change.

~~(a)(d)~~ (d) Appointments by the mayor of volunteer members of city boards, commissions, committees and agencies shall take effect 60 days from the date of the first regularly scheduled city council meeting after the notice of the proposed appointment is filed with the city clerk, unless the city council ~~rejects the appointment~~within ~~said~~those 60 days ~~shall reject such appointment. Rejection by the city council shall require a 2/3 vote.~~

~~(b) The mayor shall appoint a collector-treasurer for a term coterminous with the mayor's term and until a successor for the position of collector-treasurer is qualified unless removed by the mayor prior to the expiration of such term. The mayor shall submit the proposed appointment to the city council as soon as possible after the mayor's term commences or as soon as possible after a vacancy occurs in the collector-treasurer's office. The city council must approve this appointment by majority vote of the full council within 90 days from the date on which notice of the proposed appointment is filed with the city clerk as provided in section 3-4, or the proposed appointment shall not take effect. Removal of the collector-treasurer by the mayor prior to expiration of the collector-treasurer's term in office shall not take effect until approved by majority vote of the full city council. The collector-treasurer shall receive and pay out all money belonging to the city according to the order of its authorized officers. No other person shall have authority to pay any bill of any municipal department. The collector-treasurer shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as the mayor may prescribe in addition to such duties as may be prescribed by law.~~

Commented [JK5]: Removed specific language on collector-treasurer, which seemed unnecessarily specific and possibly based on a unique situation.

~~(e) (e)~~ (e) Rejection by the city council of an appointment by the mayor under (b) or (d) shall require a 2/3 vote.

Commented [JK6]: Existing language (see above) that was relocated to clarify its applicability.

(f) Appointments to multiple member bodies may include city employees only if allowed by the multiple member body's enabling language; provided that, unless otherwise required by law, such employees shall not serve as chair of the multiple member body. Unless otherwise required by law, no city employee shall serve on a multiple member body in a seat designated for a resident of the city.

Commented [JK7]: This provision prohibits city employees from serving on a board or commission, unless required by the enabling statute. Charter Commission sought to remove administration influence over boards and commissions designed to be run by citizens.

~~(b)~~(g) The question on rejection of any appointment made by the mayor shall not be subject to charter objection as provided in ~~subsection (c) of section 2-9. (Acts of 1991, Chap. 50; Acts of 1992, Chap 173.)~~[section 2-9\(c\)](#).

(h) ~~See.~~The mayor shall regularly, but not less frequently than annually, provide to the city clerk and the city council a listing of all vacancies on city boards and commissions, along with an indication of the appointing authority responsible for filling the vacancy. The city clerk shall make the listing available to the public electronically.

Commented [JK8]: This adds an annual requirement for Mayor to submit listing of all vacancies on boards and commissions to city council and city clerk. Transparency was intended to prevent vacancies going unfilled for too long or retention of unnecessary boards and commissions.

SECTION 3-4. Notice of Appointment.

In making appointments, the mayor shall sign and file with the city clerk a notice of appointment, a copy of which shall be filed on the same day with the clerk of the council.

~~See.~~

SECTION 3-5. Removal of Officials-; Vacancy Notification

(a) The mayor may remove any person appointed by the mayor by filing written notice ~~thereof~~[of the removal](#) with the city clerk.

(b) ~~See.~~If the position of a city officer or department head becomes vacant, the mayor shall notify the city clerk and the city council within 48 hours.

Commented [JK9]: Required notification from Mayor to city clerk and city council of key positions becoming vacant.

SECTION 3-6. Temporary Appointments-

~~Whenever~~

If there is a vacancy in an office appointed by the mayor ~~occurs~~, whether by reason of disability, death, resignation or removal from office for any reason, the mayor may appoint the head of another city office or agency, or a city officer or employee, or some other person to perform the duties of the office for a period not to exceed 3 months. ~~Whenever~~if a vacancy continues beyond 3 months, the mayor may make a second 3-month appointment, but no temporary appointment shall be continued beyond 6 months without the approval of the city council.

~~See.~~

SECTION 3-7. Communications to the City Council; Calling of Special Meetings of the City Council.

(a) Communications— Within 6 weeks following the start of each fiscal year, the mayor shall submit to the city council, and make available to the public, a complete report on the financial and administrative activities of the city for the preceding fiscal year. The mayor shall ~~from time to time throughout the year~~[not less frequently than semi-annually](#), by written communications to

Commented [JK10]: Required communication every six months of municipal revenues and financial condition of the city.

the city council, ~~keep it fully informed as~~ provide full disclosure of municipal revenues and all information related to the financial condition and future needs of the city and shall recommend such measures to ~~the council~~ as the mayor ~~judges~~ determines the needs of the city require.

(b) Calling Special Meetings —The mayor may ~~at any time~~ call a special meeting of the city council by causing a notice of such meeting that specifies the matters which the mayor desires to be considered to be left at the usual place of residence of each councilor or given to in hand ~~and public~~. Public notice of the meeting ~~to~~ shall be posted at least 248 hours in advance of the time set for the meeting, ~~or~~ for such lesser period as the mayor may determine in case of an emergency, of which the mayor shall be the judge.

See:

SECTION 3-8. Adoption of Measures; Mayor's Veto:

Not sooner ~~than 24~~ nor more than 96 hours after the adjournment of any meeting of the city council, the clerk of the council shall present to the mayor the record of the proceedings of the meeting and copies of all measures passed at the meeting. ~~If during the 24 hours immediately following such adjournment, a motion to reconsider is filed with the clerk of the council by any member of the city council who is entitled to make such a motion, the measure shall not be presented to the mayor but shall be presented to the city council for reconsideration at its next meeting.~~ , unless a city councilor has filed with the city clerk a motion to reconsider the measure under section 2-9(d). Every measure relative to the affairs of the city passed by the city council shall be presented to the mayor for the mayor's approval except: (i) any measure relating to the internal affairs of the city council; (ii) any measure relating to the election of officers whose election by the city council is authorized by law or this charter; ~~or (iii) the budget.~~ (iii) a matter exclusively within the jurisdiction of the city council; (iv) the budget; or (v) an action taken by the city council under section 10-2(d) or 10-3(a) in response to an initiative or referendum petition.

Within 10 days of receipt of a measure, the mayor shall return it to the clerk of the council with or without approval, or with a veto. Upon the mayor's approval of a measure it shall be considered adopted. If a measure is vetoed, the mayor shall attach a written statement explaining the reasons for the veto. Measures vetoed by the mayor shall be considered again by the city council at a meeting ~~not~~ not sooner than 7 days after receipt of the mayor's veto. If the city council, ~~notwithstanding such veto by the mayor,~~ shall again pass such vetoed measure by a 2/3 vote of the ~~full council then in office~~, it shall then be considered adopted. Every measure not approved or vetoed by the mayor shall be considered adopted 10 days after it has been presented to the mayor.

See:

SECTION 3-9. Temporary Absence from the Office of the Mayor:

Commented [JK11]: Doubled posting requirement for special city council meetings to provide at least 48 hour notice, in line with Open Meeting Law.

Commented [JK12]: No substantive edits here – simply re-written to incorporate provisions from other places in the charter that fit neatly here. However – the language is also dependent upon the re-write in Article 10, which included several of these provisions as well as the re-write of Article 2.

Commented [JK13]: This was re-located to Article 2 because it seemed to pertain to the powers of the city council more than the executive.

Commented [JK14]: Intended to clarify that veto override must be by 2/3 of the membership.

Whenever

If by reason of sickness, absence from the city or ~~other cause~~ otherwise, the mayor shall be unable to ~~attend to~~ perform the duties of the office of the mayor, the president of the city council or the vice president of the city council in the event of the president's disability through sickness or absence shall, as acting mayor, possess the powers of the mayor only in those matters ~~not admitting of delay~~ requiring immediate attention, but the acting mayor shall have no power to make permanent appointments. ~~If neither the mayor nor the president of the city council is able to perform the duties of the office of the mayor, the vice-president of the city council shall possess the powers of acting mayor. The city council, with approval of the mayor, may provide by ordinance for the handling of certain administrative duties of the mayor by other city councilors during the temporary absence of the mayor.~~

Commented [JK15]: Added provision regarding succession for office of Mayor.

During any period in which the president or the vice-president of the city council is serving as acting mayor, the acting mayor shall not serve as the presiding officer of the city council.

The restriction contained in section 3-1 relative to holding other office or actively engaging in a business, occupation or profession shall not apply to an acting mayor holding office under this section. ~~See-~~

SECTION 3-10. Vacancy in the Office of the Mayor.

(a) If a vacancy occurs in the office of the mayor, ~~by death, resignation, removal from office, failure to elect or otherwise~~ at any time preceding the last 9 calendar months of the term for which the mayor was elected, the city council shall ~~forthwith call, at its next~~ regular meeting, introduce a measure calling for a special election to fill the vacancy for the remainder of the unexpired term ~~and shall, within 30 days, act on that measure. The special election shall be held within 150 days~~ and, if a preliminary election is required under section 8-3, the preliminary election shall be held within 100 days of the calling of the election.

Commented [JK16]: Intended to clarify ambiguity of "forthwith" and provide a specific timeline for city council to take action.

Commented [JK17]: Timeline for special election developed in line with many other charters and advice from consultants.

(~~a~~) (b) If a vacancy occurs in the office of the mayor during the last 9 calendar months of the term for which the mayor was elected, the ~~clerk of the council shall forthwith call a special meeting of the city council and the city council shall by majority vote of the full council elect 1 of its members as acting mayor for the remainder of the unexpired term. If the city council fails to elect an acting mayor as aforesaid within 30 days of the date of the meeting called by the clerk of the council, the president of the city council shall become acting mayor, shall exercise all the rights and powers of the mayor and shall be sworn to the faithful performance of the duties of the office. Upon the election and qualification of any member of the city council as acting mayor under this section, a vacancy shall exist in the member's council seat.~~ president of the city council shall serve as the acting mayor until the next election for mayor is held. If the city council president is unable or unwilling to serve, the vice president of the city council shall serve as mayor. If both the council president and the council vice

Commented [JK18]: Changed contingency plan for vacancy in office of Mayor. Eliminated provision calling for city council to elect an acting mayor, definite succession plan included.

president are unable or unwilling to serve, the council shall elect from among its membership a councilor to serve as the acting mayor.~~The restriction contained in section 3-1 relative to holding other office or actively engaging in a business, occupation or profession shall not apply to an acting mayor holding office under this section. The removal from residency within the city shall create a vacancy in the office. (Referendum of 11-04-75.)~~

(c) Upon the certification of the results from the next election, the person elected to be mayor shall be immediately sworn and begin serving as mayor and the new mayor shall, in addition to the term for which the member was elected, serve for the balance of the then-unexpired term.

The mayor's removal from residency within the city shall create a vacancy in the office.

ARTICLE 5.
FINANCIAL PROCEDURES

See-SECTION 5-1. Financial Condition of the City

The mayor shall annually prepare a forecast of city revenues, expenditures and the general financial condition of the city. The forecast shall cover at least 5 years and shall include all funds subject to appropriation. The forecast shall also include, but need not be limited to, an identification of factors with significant impact on the financial condition of the city, revenue and expenditure trends, potential sources of new or expanded revenues and long or short-term actions which may enhance the financial condition of the city. The mayor shall submit the forecast to the city council at least 6 months prior to the mayor's submission of the next fiscal year's operating budget and shall make the forecast available to the public for inspection.

Commented [JK1]: New provision added requiring the mayor to submit a forecast of the city's financial condition to the City Council at last 6 months prior to submission of the annual budget.

SECTION 5-2. Submission of Budget; Budget Message-

Within the period prescribed by state statute, the mayor shall submit to the city council a proposed budget for the ensuing fiscal year, which shall provide a complete financial plan of all city funds and activities for the ensuing fiscal year, an accompanying budget message and supporting documents.

The mayor's message shall explain the budget for all city agencies both in fiscal terms and in terms of work programs. It shall: (i) outline the proposed financial policies of the city for the ensuing fiscal year; (ii) describe the important features of the budget; (iii) indicate any major changes from the current fiscal year in financial policies, expenditures, and revenues and the reasons for such changes; (iv) summarize the city's debt position; and (v) include such other material as the mayor deems desirable or the city council may reasonably require.

See-The budget shall include funding for legal assistance to the city council and an independent audit of all city accounts. The amount of funding for legal assistance to the city council may be amended by ordinance; provided however, that such an ordinance shall not take effect until the fiscal year following its adoption.

Commented [JK2]: Added language to provide independent legal assistance to the city council. After learning that the City Council sees a potential conflict in receiving legal advice from a department controlled by the Mayor – the charter commission was persuaded that the city council, in limited circumstances, may need to hire independent counsel.

SECTION 5-23. Action on the Budget.

The city council shall adopt the budget, with or without amendments, within 45 days following the day the budget is received by the city council. In amending the budget, the city council may delete or decrease any programs or amounts, except expenditures required by law or for debt service, but it may not increase any programs or amounts.

If the city council fails to take action with respect to any item in the budget within 45 days after receipt of the budget, such amount shall, without any action by the city council, become a part of the appropriations for the year and be available for the purposes specified.

See SECTION 5-34. Capital Inventory and Capital Improvement Program.

(a) ~~Submission~~—The mayor ~~shall prepare and submit to the~~ and city council ~~a 5-year capital improvement program at least 6 months prior to receipt~~ shall be active stewards of the ~~next fiscal year's operating budget~~ city's physical assets.

~~(b) Contents~~—~~The capital improvement program~~ (b) Capital Inventory — The mayor shall establish and update not less frequently than annually, an inventory of significant capital assets, such as: buildings; infrastructure (water, sewer, storm water, and road systems); moveable equipment; and such other property as determined by ordinance. The city council shall, by ordinance, establish the requirements of the inventory, such as: age; condition; maintenance and repair history; remaining useful life; and other features the city council deems appropriate.

(c) Capital Improvement Program— The mayor shall create a capital improvement program, which shall include: (i) a clear summary of its contents; (ii) a list of all capital improvements proposed to be undertaken during the next 5 fiscal years with supporting data and rationale; (iii) cost estimates, method of financing and recommended time schedules; and (iv) the estimated annual cost of operating and maintaining the ~~facilities~~ capital assets included. The ~~above information~~ capital improvement program shall be revised and extended ~~each year~~ annually.

~~(e) Public Hearing~~—~~The city council shall publish in 1 or more newspapers of general circulation in~~ (d) Submission — The mayor shall submit to the city council the ~~general summary of inventory and the 5-year capital improvement program~~ and a notice stating: (i) ~~at least 6 months prior to the times and places where copies~~ mayor's submission of the operating budget for the next fiscal year.

(e) Public Hearing—The city council shall make the proposed capital improvement program ~~are~~ available for inspection by to the public; and (ii) the date, time and place, not less than 2 weeks after the publication, when a ~~and shall hold at least 1~~ public hearing, in accordance with state law, on the capital improvement program ~~will be held by the city council~~.

(d) Adoption — After the public hearing, concurrently with the passage of the next fiscal year's budget, the city council may amend and shall, by resolution, adopt the capital improvement program ~~with or without amendments~~.

(Referendum of 11-04-75.)

Commented [JK3]: Regarding stewardship of the city's physical assets – this language would:
(a) added a statement of intent;
(b) mandates an inventory of capital assets with annual updates
(c) Requires annual submission of the capital improvement program
(d) Requires submission of the inventory and CIP at least 6 months prior to the submission of the annual budget
(e) Requires the city council to hold a public hearing on the proposed CIP
(f) Permits the city council to amend the CIP after the public hearing
(g) Requires the mayor to annually report on the progress of the CIP

See (g) Annual Report—The mayor shall annually report on the city’s progress regarding the capital improvement program.

SECTION 5-45. Contracts.

All contracts entered into for or in behalf of the city by any officer or city agency shall be subject to the approval of the mayor, unless otherwise provided by law.

SECTION 5-6. Independent Audit

The city council shall annually provide for an independent audit of all city funds to be conducted by a certified public accountant in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The city council shall, by ordinance, establish procedures for oversight and administration of the annual audit including: (i) method of selection of an independent auditor; (ii) the scope of the audit; and (iii) receipt of the report and any recommendations from the auditor, including recommendations regarding internal controls.

Commented [JK4]: State law requires certain city contracts to be handled by other officials (i.e. School Superintendent)

Commented [JK5]: Requirement for annual independent audit of all city funds.

ARTICLE 6.
ADMINISTRATIVE DEPARTMENTS

See-SECTION 6-1. Reorganization Plans by City Council.

~~Except as otherwise provided by law or this charter, the city council may by ordinance: (i) reorganize, consolidate or abolish any existing city agency in whole or in part; (ii) establish new city agencies; and (iii) prescribe the functions of any city agencies. All city agencies under the direction and supervision of the mayor shall be headed and administered by officers appointed by the mayor.~~

Sec. 6-2. Reorganization Plans by Mayor.

(a) The mayor may, ~~from time to time,~~ prepare and submit to the city council reorganization plans which may, subject to applicable law and this charter, reorganize, consolidate or abolish any city agency, in whole or in part, or establish new city agencies as the mayor considers necessary or expedient. The reorganization plan shall be accompanied by an explanatory memo which shall include: (i) reference to any ordinances to be repealed or modified; and (ii) a summary of proposed ordinance language changes to be put into effect by the plan.

(b) Every reorganization plan shall, upon receipt by the ~~clerk of the city~~ council, be referred to an appropriate committee of the city council which shall, not more than 30 days ~~later~~ after receipt of the plan, hold a public hearing on the matter and shall, not later than the second regular meeting of the city council following the hearing, report either that it approves or disapproves of the plan. A reorganization plan shall become effective 90 days after the date it is received by the city council unless the city council has prior to that date voted to disapprove the reorganization plan or unless a later effective date is specified in the plan. A reorganization plan presented by the mayor to the city council under this section ~~may~~ shall not be amended by the city council but shall either be approved or rejected as submitted ~~and.~~ Reorganization plans shall not be subject to charter objection as provided in ~~subsection (c) of section 2-9-(c).~~

(c) The mayor shall provide notice, not later than March 1, to the city council of any reorganization plan reasonably expected to affect the budget for the ensuing fiscal year.

SECTION 6-32. Publication of Reorganization Plan-

~~An~~

The city clerk shall maintain an up-to-date record of any reorganization plan adopted under this article ~~shall be kept on file in the office of the city clerk~~ and copies of all such plans shall be included as an appendix in any publication of the ordinances of the city.

Commented [JK1]: Removed provision enabling city council to reorganize the executive departments. Feedback to Commission was that the Council did not initiate re-organizations and current best practice is to make this exclusively an executive function.

Commented [JK2]: Required sufficient notice to city council if re-organization expected to have budget impacts.

Charter Commission Reports: Articles, 1, 3, 5 and 6

1/26/16	Article 3
2/24/16	Article 3
3/9/16	Article 3
3/16/16	Article 3
4/6/16	Article 3
4/11/16	Article 1
5/11/16	Article 1
5/18/16	Articles 1 and 3
5/25/16	Article 3
6/1/16	Article 3
6/15/16	Articles 5 and 6
6/29/16	Articles 5 and 6
7/12/16	Articles 5 and 6
9/28/16	Articles 5 and 6
10/19/16	Articles 5 and 6
10/26/16	Article 6
3/29/17	Article 3
4/12/17	Article 3
4/24/17	Article 3